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RE: DOCKET NO. 960627-TI - HEARTLINE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. -
INLTIATION OF BHOW CAUSE PROCEEDINGS FOR VIOLATION OF
RULE 25-4.118, F.A.C., INTEREXCHANGE CARRIER SELECTION

AGENDA: 07/30/96 = REGULAR AGENDA - INTERESTED PERBONS MAY
PARTICIPATE

CRITICAL DATESB: NONE

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 8:\PSC\CMU\WP\960627B.RCM

CASE BACKGROUND

From January 1, 1994 through June 30, 1996, the Division of
Consumer Affairs has received 273 complaints against Heartline
Communications, Inc. (Heartline) concerning unauthorized carrier

changes (slamming) . Staff has observed a steady increase in the
number of consumer complaints each year. For example, 11 wvalid
complaints were filed against the company in 1994, followed by 77
valid complaints during calendar year 1995 (Attachment A). During
the first six months of 1996, staff wverified that 18% consumer
complaints (Attachment B) filed against Heartline were valid (i.e.
apparent violations of Rule 25-4.118, Florida Administrative Code).

Staff was disturbed that complaints continued to increase
despite our notifying Heartline of each complaint and seeking
corrective action. Consequentlv, on May 30, 1996, staff filed a
recommendation that the company be ordered to show cause why it
should not be fined or have its certificate cancelled for the
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appirent violations. This item was deferred from the June 11, 1996
agenda conference at the request of Heartline.

Subseqguently, Heartline submitted an offer of settlement
(Attachment C). Staff's recommendation addresses the settlement
offer.

DISCUSSION OF ISBUES

ISSUE 1: Should the Commission accept the settlement proposed by
Heartline cCommunications, Inec. as resolution of the apparent
violations of Rule 25-4.118, Florida Administrative Code?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: No.

STAFF ANALYSBIS: on June 28, 1996, Counsel for Heartline
submitte1 an offer of settlement to staff (Attachment C). The
settlement offer can be summarized as follows.

SUMMARY OF SETTLEMENT OFFER
1) Heartline does not admit any liability or wrongdoing.

2) Heartline is a small company with approximately 9124
Florida customers.

3) Heartline has primarily marketed its long distance
services through independent marketing companies over
which it has no direct contrel.

4) Heartline's review of complaints sent to it by the
Commission indicates that with rare exception the LOAs
were signed by the person authorized to sign them, by a
member of the family, or by a friend.

5) Heartline acknowledges that additional complaints have
been received since it began negotiations with the PS5SC
staff on November 14, 1995.

f) Heartline's agent, TropicTel did not modify its marketing
program to the satisfaction of the PSC staff.
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7)

on June 26, 1996, Heartline notified each ot its
marketing firms that it is discontinuing the "“box
program" in Florida.

Heartline will pay $25,000 to the Florida Public Service
commission with said monies to be forwarded to the Office
of the State Treasurer for deposit in the General Revenue
Fund.

Heartline will continue to pay for the conversion of any
customers that complain back to the primary interexchange
carrier from which the customer was transferred.

STAFF'S CONCERNS WITH SETTLEMENT OFFER
No opinion pending discovery.
Mo opinion pending discovery.

staff believes Heartline is responsible for the actions
of its marketing agent(s) when it accepts and submits
LOAs obtained by those agents to LECs for the purpose of
changing a customer's long distance carrier. Heartline
has used the services of at least four marketing agents:
Millennium Telecom, Straight Talk, Binning Enterprises,
Inc., and Tropic Tel according to Heartline's response to
consumer complaints. In addition, Heartline has received
complaints when it marketed its services directly
(Attachment D).

Staff notes that even if a member of the customer's
family or a friend of the customer signed the LOA, it
would not make the LOA valid as Rule 25-4.118, Florida
administrative Code, reguires the authorization and
signature of the customer and no one else.

Staff agrees.
Staff agrees.

staff is in favor of discontinuing the box program but
would like to know how Heartline now plans to market its
services in Florida. How will Heartline ensure that the
PIC changes it submits to the LEC for processing are
valid in the future?
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8) Staff believes $50,000 is a more appropriate penalty due
to the number of complaints received, the company's
failure to take corre~tive action in a timely manner, and
the penalties paid by other long distance carriers for
similar violations.

9) Staff agrees that Heartline should reimburse any customer
that complains for the amount of any charge the LEC
billed to change the customer's PIC back to his previous
carrier. Staff believes Heartline should also clarify
that it will reimburse the complaining customer for any
charges he was billed by the LEC for making the
unauthorized PIC change to Heartline as required by Rule
25-4,118(5), Florida Administrative Code. 1In addition,
Heartline should clarify that it will reimburse any
complaining customer for usage rates that are higher than
those charged by the customer's previous carrier as
required by Rule 25-4.118(5), Florida Administrative
Code.

Therefore, staff does not believe the settlement offer
(Attachment C) should be accepted as proposed.

ISSUE 2: Should Heartline Communications, Inc. be ordered to show
cause why it should not be fined or have its certificate (No. 3494)
cancelled pursuant to Section 364.285, Florida Statutes?

STAFF 0 ON: Yes.,
STAFF ANALYBSIB: Rule 2%-4.118, Florida Administrative Code,

provides in pertinent parts:

(1) The primary interexchange company (PIC)
of a customer shall not be chanoed without the
customer's authorization.

(3 CBY e Such statement shall be clearly
legible and printed in type at least as large
as any other text on the page. I1f any such

document is not used solely for the purpose of
requesting a PIC change, then the document as
a whole must not be misleading or deceptive.
For purposes of this rule, the terms
"misleading or deceptive" mean that, because
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of the style, format or content of the
document, it would not be readily apparent to
the person signing the document that the
purpose of the signature was to authorize a
PIC change, or it woul. be unclear to the
customer who the new long distance service
provider would be; that the customer's
selection would apply only to the number
listed and there could only be one long
distance service provider for that number; or
that the customer's local exchange company
might charge a fee to switch service
providers....

The majority of the complaints received against Heartline
stem from the use of sweepstakes posters with letter of
authorization (LOA) forms attached to enter various types of
sweepsta”es such as a Hawaiian vacation or to win a Mustang
automobile. For example, of the 262 valid complaints filed during
the past approximately 18 months, 243 have resulted from LOAs
obtained through sweepstakes offer:. On November 14, 1995,
staff wrote Heartline regarding an LOA that was found in a
Tallahassee restaurant (Attachment E). 1In staff's opinion, the LOA
did not comply with Rule 25-4.118(.)(b) for two reasons. First,
the text stating that the long distance service would be changed
was not the same size as other text on the page. Second, the
entire display being used to induce customers to fill out the LOA
was misleading and deceptive in that it emphasized the sweepstakes
entry over the long distance carrier change.

Heartline's response (Attachment D) stated that it was the
underlying carrier providing long distance services to independent
agents who in turn marketed their services to end users. Heartline
stated that prior to January 1, 1995, it had done its own marketing
but after that four different compainies had marketed its services
in Florida. From Heartline's response, it was apparent to staff
that the company was simply contracting with a succession of
marketing companies, none of which were marketing the services in
accordance with Commission rules. Staff notified Heartline of its
concerns on December 13, 1995 (Attachment F). Staff suggested that
the company implement a procedure to correct the cause of the
complaints.

on January S, and 16, 1996, counsel for the marketing firm,
Tropic Tel, responded to staff's letter (Attachment G). It was
agreed that its promotional material would be modified to include
the statement "Submission of official entry form can result in
change in long distance service." 1t was staff's understanding
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Fines levied in past orders for similar violations range from
$2,000 to $100,000. Staff believes that Heartline should be
ordered to show cause why it should rot be fined or have its
certificate cancelled due to the repeared incidents of slamming
reported to the Commission and the misleading manner in which its
services were marketed. In the event the company is fined, the
monies should be forwarded to the Office of the Comptroller for
deposit in the State General Revenue Fund pursuant to Section
364.285(1), Florida Statutes.

ISSUE 3: Shovld this docket be closed?

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: HNo.

STAFF ANALYS8IB8: If Issue 1 is approved, this docket should remain
open pending disposition of the show cause. Otherwise, this docket

should be closed. In the event the company is fined, the monies
should be forwarded to the Office of the Comptroller for deposit in
the State General Revenue Fund pursuant to Section 364.285(1),
Florida Statutes.
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DIVISION OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

SPECIAL REQUEST REPCRT
SLAMMING REPORT
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COMMUNTCAT IOWS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
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COMPaN ICATIONS,
COMMUN TCATIOKS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNICAT IONS |
COMslUM [ CAT [ONS
COMPUNMTCAT [0S,
COMMUNTCAT 'ONS,
COMMUN I CATIONS,
COMMUN | CAT IONS,
CorouN [ CAT IONS,
COMMUN[CATIONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUN | CATIONS,
COMMUN ICATIONS
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUN ICATIONS,
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HEARTL INE
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HERRTL INE
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WEARTLINE
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HERRTLIKE
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WEARTL INE
HEARTLINE
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COMPLAIRANT

MANIULM, CHANDEA
TEITLER, DAMIEL
LUCIEN, MADIR
TYNZALL, M.
CONROY,
HORWATH, STEFsLW

BRISCOE, 5]mOn

BAKER, EGGER

CAVIN, TOM

MAMMOLIT], FRED

HARSHALL , JOMM

ADIN, LDIS P,

TOWNEEND, ELIZABETH

JACOB, EDWARD & DELDSES
CORIOLAN, JADLELINE

FIELDS, MARIE

WISHART , DAVE

SILLY, BRUNO J.

DALEY, MARISUE

THOMPSON , JOSEFH

PALUL MOORE IWSURANCE SERVICES
HERZBERGER, RONALD
CALDERON, INES

JACDBS, FALCOM

LASTER, SUZANKE

DOYLE, BARRY

CAMACHO, JUAN

ENIGHT, SHIRLEY

GERACE, FRAN

CROSS, JOYCE

WAGNER, HORACE THOMAS

FANN, WILLIRM F. (JR)
STECHER, DONMA

POLLARD, LINDA

THOMPSON, JONN (MRS)
NARDOME , TONY

KR1STIN
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LS-134
L5-13a
L5 13k
Ls=13a
L5-13a
LS-13a
LS-13A
L5-13a
L5-1Ia
L5-13a
LS-13a
LS5-134
LS5-13a
LE-138
LS-13a
LS-134
L3-134
LS-13a
LS-13a
L5-134
LS-12A
LS-13a
L5-13a
L5-13a
LS-13A
L5-13a
LS-13a
Ls-13a
LS-13A
LS-13A
L5-13A
LS-134
LS-13a
LS-13a
L5-13A

RECYD

01703/%98
a1/ 1059
WA FARS "
Q171856
L2079
01722796
D1722;%6
01722596
01722796
01724796
DV26/9%
0172579
01725756
01445796
0V s 25/94
0y 26,98
0lples98
01287596
0130794
013756
013196
QL3R
a1/ 3194
0201 /%6
02/01/%6
02702158
02706196
02706796
02707796
02707796
02709794
0212756
02/13/%6
Q213796
02/19/%6
02720794
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0320496
0371496
G3/15/%%
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AR -
03718759
0318794
C2/29/%6
0L/ 18796
05715796
02729/%6
06/ 12/%6
Q31596
03/18/%8
02/10/%&
03/15/%6
03730/%8
03714/%8
0272979
Q2729796
0L/ 1B/96
2729756
03720756
04/ 16/%0
02/29/9%
0272979
0725796
02729794
03712796
03/14/96
03/12/96
04730798
03715798
03715756
04 24 /96
02728796
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EMT DADE
] FLa
WT LEON
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EMT LECH
JRD PLE
TAS PLB
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Sas LEE
EAS BRO
KES LEOM
kM7 LEE
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L] LEE
DEM DADE
JRD STL
JRD LELN
M7 FLE
DEM LECN
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RO LECN
JRD MAN
R DADE
JRD FLB
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SAS LEE
SAS FLB
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JRO LEE
ShM LEE

COoMPLAINT

1039721
10a2261
1057581
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1067651
10677t
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1068081
1048441
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1074531
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1076311
10764591
107733
o2l
1079081
107943
108381
1091071
1091
1091111
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1D1&51
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1111371
1122241
1124701
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6.23
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17 b
1.49
97.18
1.7
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11,43
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(305)-829-1024
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(&07T)-358-0521
(702 )-574-0713
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(P04 -384-T197
(F04)-327-4354
(704 )-668-1333
(Pe1)-TSB- 3954
(305)-6461-1420
(L07)-6E9-8T67
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(961)-&81-8249
(407)-T95-077S
(305)-751-6013
(B13)-345- 1264
{407)-T32-T355
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(Fe1)-T72-7287
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HEARTL IKE
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HEARTLIKE

© HEARTLIKE

HEARTLINE
HEARTLIKE
HEARTLINE

Covo n | CATIONS,
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COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNICAT | DNS,
COMMUN I CATIONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMPUNICATIONS,
COMMUN I CATIONS,
COMMUN I CATIONS,
COMMUN ] CAT LONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNICAT|ONS,
COMMUNICATONS,

o

oIS N Ty

COMMUNICATIONS, |

COMMUNCAT[ONS,
COMMUNTCATIONS,
COMMUN[CAT[ONS,
COMMUN [ CATIONS,
COMMUN [ CATIONS,
COMMUN | CATIONS,
COMMUN [ CATIONS,
COMMUN [ CATIONS,
COMMUN | CATIDNS,
COMMUN | CATIONS,
COMMUN | CATIONS,
COMMUN T CATIONS,
COMMUN I CATIONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNICATIONS,
COMMUNTCATIONS,
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CLAMINCHAM, CARDH
NARAN D, MARIA
DERIVERA, JOSEFW
MARSHOFSKY, [SAAC
ROSATI, PETES
BU%TING, CRETA
JONNS, LUCT
RAMZEY, CLORIA
EATOM, TINA
SICKE, JEAN

TESKE, CARCL
MAXWELL, STAKLEY
FLANDERS, GRADY
GiueeTo, CERALD
GUY, JAMES (MRS}
MATTWEWS, LISA
SHERRY, HARCLD
DRISCOLL, THOMAS
MELEMDEZ, SANDRA
HEWITT, VIRGINIA
ROGERTS, E. A. (M5.)
PESSOA, FRANCO
FULLERTOM, CWRIST)NE
WHITE, AMMIE

CHAL, ANTHONY
VANN, ROSIN
ADKINS, CHUCK
DAVIS, J. STAMLEY
CRLANDO, K. SANDRA
ROJAS, VERGINIA
DICKSON, JOYCE
BAZAN, LUIS (MRS)
VAMARKAM , JOHN
DOUGHERTY, FRANCIS
CORIND, WILLIAM
KAIAR, KiM
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D&/ 18/%6
32856
Da18/%8
D&/ 18,96
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DL/ 18/%6
03/30/%6
0L/ 18/%6
Da/18/%8
03/ 16/%
0L/18/%8
0s/ 14795
0L/ 1R %6
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03/22/96
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G
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18.14

.34
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18,67
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CLEMMONS, SARAS
CONYEA, CRYLON
BIWSA, MARTIAN
BramaM, FAUL
CORDO, MAGCALY
POSSEAD, BAREARA
CALLARDO, ANITA
THOMAS, OPAL
WOOM, DAVID

WEISIR, WILLIAM (MAS)

BYRD, BILLY
DUVAL, JOWN
SOUCA, FEIBI
REISEL, ROBERT
SIMS, KiM

WALLACE, CARMEW 0. AMD BRUCE

DAVIS, TROY
SINGH,
YORK, RICMARD
BAYER, C. REEVES
SALMON, ALBERT 4.
HU, YAD-DIMG
MCINTOSH, JESSIE
SANTIACO, PEDRO

DELLAPIETRO, ELIZABITH

cauz, RIS
KALL, DENNIS
COLEMAM, JULIA L.
HOUCK, ToReet .
OALTOM, GRACIE
SOLER, JORGE

CREEMWOUSE, ROmALD

VERMER, LAWERENCE
MASH, KEVIN
JACKSON, JACK
HINKLE, DAVID
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1211841
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STEWIRT, CRaRiE5 u,

CONMDLLY, B1Ce&RD
BAKER, JESSIE
TLLLS, SORCTRY

FASIAL, CeasLES 4.
MOSLEY, DANIEL L EASQAER
CLAY, FATH[CIA
WWEELER, LUCILLIE M,
WiLLIAMS  FOMALD
CARRISON, WiLLIAM
SALES, JOEMAR
WINTER, ®UT
AWDERSOW, BILLY
JONES, PAUL =,
WALGH, DOMALD
SPEAREE, LSmaROw
MASTEACRID, LOULIS
CMITH, CECELIA
PERDER, ROBEST
PECPROM], CHARLES W,
WISCATO, SANDEA
SEIBERT, GRELCST
BLALR, JOHN

MALL, FRED

MOBLEY, WILLIE
PATEL, SUNIL

ECK, BOS

MARCHANT, BETTIE E.
SERRAND, LULIS
SIEGEL, BARB

DIRKS, ALAN L LAURA
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Jim Mattox

Attorney and Counselor

Jung 2K, 19%0

Mr Scott Edmonds

Division of Legal Services '
Public Service Commission

Capital Circle Office Centen

2540 Shumand Oak Bivd

Tallahassee, FL.. 31239490850

VIA FAX (904 413621

Re Docket No. 960627-T1
Hearthine Communications, Inc

Dear Mr Edmonds .

Without admitting hability or wrongdoing, Heartline Communications, Inc , would hke to
proposc an informal resolution in the above-numbsred and styled cause

Heartling 1s a small company with approximaiely 9124 Flonda customers We have prifants
matketed our long distance services through independ=nt marketing companics over which we have no
direct control. We do not design their solicitation matenials We have required that the LOAs be in
compliance with FCC guidelines and clearly sets out that the individual that signs the LOA 15 authorizin

the PIC change

After a carcful review of the complaints brought to our attention by the Commussion, we hine
found that with rare exception the LOA s were signed by the person authonized to sign them, by a member
of the fanmly, or by a friend  In all probability, the LOA’s were not read, or the individual did not
remember signing them. The customers were not “slammed™ under the traditional defimion because
permission was granted, nevertheless, we do not wish to contest the complaints. We are interested. as 1
the PSC, in stopping the complainis

When Heartline was contacted by F5C s1afl on November 14, 1993 we immediately 1espaindad i
a cooperative spinit and got TropicTel, our principal marketing company, to enter into negotiatians with
PSC staff It appeared that an agrecable solution had been reached  Additional actions would hane been
taken at that ume had 1t be requested or required. We received no additional notice before this action was
commenced We acknowledge that additional complaints have been receved and that TropicTel did not
modify 11s markeung program to the satisfaction of PSC.

We have been told by both Rick Moses and Kathy Lewis that the PSC would ultimately prefer fon
Heartline 1o discontinue the sweepstakes/box program  Because we have no other substantial marketing
activity in Flonda, the discontinuance of the program will have a dramauc impact on our financial
capability. nevertheless, we hmve notified cach of our marketing firms that we are disconhinuing the bos
program m Flonda - These notices were given June 25, 19%6. We must give 30 days notice under out
contracts, however we expect the actual terminaton to be more rapid

Mailing Address PO Box 13223 ® Austin, Texas TB711 ® 512 476-6000 B FAX 512 474-4547

s | ‘7...
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Because of our full cooperation in this matter and the impact that this change of markeung will
have on our small company, we ask that this matier be resolved on an informal basis by allowing us to
$25,000.00 into the Florida Treasurer's Office for the benefit of the general fund We recognizc that the
PSC has incurred substantial investigative costs and attorneys fees in this matter. We also comnut
ourselves Lo continue paying the conversion of any customers that complain back to the PIC from which
the customer was transferred  We are prepared to take these actions immediately

We hope that you will accept this good faith prop sal to settle this case

Tim Mattox

IMcmb
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T ORIGINAL TO FOLLOW
LY

Mr. Rick Moscs

Eng. Supervisor, Bureau of Service Lvaluation
State of Flonda Public Service Commission
Capital Crrcle Office Center

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd

Tallahassee, F1 32399-08%0

Dear Mr Mines
Thas letter is i response o your letter of November 14, 1998 10 Heanline Communscations. Inc

Heartline currenth acts as a centified underlying carmicr in the State of Flonida providing long distance services to independent
agents whoon tun sell and cnarket to end users

Please let me explan the current relationship between Hearthne and the independent comparnies assoctated with the Florida
Public Service Commission complaints

Trapic Tel is the only independent company for which Heartline provides a certificd carmier service that offers long distance
through a sweepstahes m the State of Flonda - Most of these prior complaunts were associated with the efforts of Heanline and
othet independent companies for whom Hearthne acted as a ceruificd carriet

1 Heartline - Pros o Jamuary 1, 1995, Heartline acted i a sales and marketing capacity oflering long distance
service tn conjunction with an optional sweepstahes offering  Heanline 1otally ceased all direct sales and
markehing prachices as of January 1. 1998

nJd

Millenniun Telecom - Prior 1o January 1. 1995, Millennium acted s an independent agent for Heanline
Heartlne ceased scoepring Jetters of authorzation (LOA ) from Millennium afier January 19958

Stiraight Talk - Prior o September 11, 1998, Spaight Talk acied as an wdependent agent for Hearthine
Heartline ceased aceepting LOA's from Straght Talk as of September 19494

fad

4 Banming | oterprises = Prior o October 31, 1995, Binrung acted as an independent agent Lo Hearline
Heartline ceased acceping elecronically subminted telephone numbers for long distance conversion as of
October 31, 1995

L~

Tropic Tel - Tropic Tel became an independent agent of Heartline in June 1995 LOA's are provided 1o
Heartline fur review and data entry submission 10 the local exchange carrier for conversion of long distance
service As of September 11, 1998 Heartline ceased accepting 1 OA's that were not in comphance with the
FOCs order CC Docket No. 94-129. The LOA that Tropic Tel uses was designed in conjunciion with
Heartline 1o ensure compliance with the FCC requirements

D
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Rick Moses

Florida Publi Service Commission
December 6, 19958
Page 2

Heartline did not design the marketing display for Tropic Tel: but we believe that the Flonida Commission’s Rule 25-4 118
(2¥b). F A C. regardmg text would have to be as large as the very biggest wording on the box. Clearly the headlines must be
considered separately, and the LOA must be considered » separat document. The staternent that the LOA will result i the
person's bong distance service bemg switched must be of at least as 1arge as any other text on the page is being comphed with
in that the Tropic Tel LOA is utilized for solely 10 request & PIC change. Our interpretation of the print size required for the
portion of the LOA that states ] am a1 least 18 years of age.." eic.. is in compliance because the heading “Official Form™ and
mstruction portion “Please Print - Fill Out Completely” are not pant of the “tex™ that the regulation speaks to. Agawn. thuy 1
our interpretation. 1f this LOA is not in compliance, we want to work with the Commission 1o bring it into compliance. W
believe that the display clearly states that the consumer has the opportunity to enter a contest as well as changing his’her long
distance service  The LOA document is 8 sepsmils and severable document from this display  Although we believe the display
is totally clear. we will ask Tropic Tel on thewr next printing of the display 1o add additional language that would remove any
doubt concerning the purpose of the display

Enclosed for yoiur review is a breakdown of all complaints received in our office from January 1, 1995 10 date, lsung the
associated independent companies. All responses have been completed except as indicated It is Heartline's policy that if we
are notified that a telephone number has been changed improperly or by mistake we will rectify it immedsately. eredit the PIC
charges and rerat all calls 1o the preferred cammier, if appliczble

We want to assure the Commussion that we will continue thar policy even if the complainant docs nof contact the Commisyion
O company sitply needs 1o be notified and we will make a change We want 10 be good corporate citizens in Flonda We
have over 12,000 current satisfied customers  The number of complants 1 relatively small and arise when an individual
improperly signs up for another or the LOA is sumply not read

We sincerely hope that the Commission will not find it pecessary wo take additioral sction regarding this matier Please feel
free 1o call upon me at 1-800-569-7119 for any questions that you may have

Sincerels.

HEAR ACATIONS, INC

Rom Darnell
b xecutive Vice President

fr
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DATE RECEIVED

1/19/85
1/26/85
2/06/95
2/06/95
2/09/85
2/22/95
2724185
2127185
07195
3/16/85
3/16/95
3/16/85
316/95
3/16/85
/20185
3/23/85
3724/95
3/28/95
4/05/895
4/D6/85
4/26/95
4/28/95
5/15/85
6/29/95
7/06/85
7/06/95
7/13/85
7/27/85
8/13/95
8/15/95
10/11/85
1/20/85
1/23/85
1/23/85
1/25/85
1727185
3/10/05
3/28/85
/30185
4/28/85
5/01/05
5/22/85
6/09/85
8/16/95
B8/20/95
6/22/95
7/05/85
7/17195

FL PSC COMPLAINTS

RECEIVED
01/01/95 TO 11/28/85

AGENT

Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communications,

Heartline Communications

Hearthne Communications,

Heartline Communications,

Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Heartine Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Hearline Communications,
Hearlline Communications,
Hearlline Communications,
Heartline Communications,

Hearlline Communicalions

Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communications,

Heartline Communications

Heartine Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Hearline Communications,
Heartine Communications,
Hearlline Communications,
Hearlline Communications,
Heartline Communications,
Heartline Communicalions,
Hear!line Communications,
Hearline Communications,
Hearthne Communicalions,

Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom
Millennium Telecom

0

Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc
Inc

COMPLAINANT'S NAME
HURNS. BERNARD
MOORE, KATIE MAY
SIEWERT, BOGDANO
ST. GEORGE COPTIC CHURCH
DYKES, GARY
EISENBERGER, SHARON
PICKETT, PATRICIA
SUAREZ, EDDIE
YOUNG, GARY
ALLEN, WENDELL M
BYRER, WILLIAM
LACOMBE, LORI
LOVETT. JEFFREY
VANGAASBECK ROSEMARY
TORRES. SILVIA
SAWYER. CHARLES
DUNAWAY, K CATHERINE
SCHREIBSTEIN, ROBERT
SOUIRIGI, CARMEN
ODELL. NANCY
FOURNIER, ROBERT
LARZABL, JOSE G MRS
BROWN, JOHN
MCNEAL, GERTRUDE
SULLIVAN, DANIEL MRS
WEISS, MITCHELL
SINGH, HARDEEP
RODRIGUEZ, CONCEPCION
SLUDER, THOMAS
ESPANA, EVELYN
LYLEN, IAN
LODISE. ROCCO
DEITER. DENNIS
HOLLAND, STEPHEN
RAVELLI, JOSEPH
HOLLEY, VALORIE
TAFFINDER, CHARLES
MILLER. MILDRED
BROWN, CLARENCE
BUSHMAN, CRAIG
PETERS. DAVID
CHARLOTTE COUNTY SCHOOLS
PHILLIPS, PRESTON
ROWE, MYLET
ESTES, CATHELINE
SUAREZ, ALFONSO
WILSON, SAMUEL AND BARBARA
EPSTEIN, DAVID

CASE #
048857P
050368P
052080P
052105P
052857P
DE0450P
055126P
055313P
056620P
058223P
050220P
059214P
058222P
055223P
0467 3EF
058516P
0Ses18P
0804BBP
061730P
061723P
DE3ETOP
064460P
067282P
073765P
074788P
074805P
D74548F
078575P
DB7380P
072296P
081832P
050115P
D4877TP
D45516P
050288P
050477P
057 124P
OE02B0P
060404P
DS4c48P
065~ 2P
058838P
070B61P
071913P
072319P
072471P
078621P
076618P
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. FL PSC COMPLAINTS
RECEIVED
01/01/95 TO 11/28/95

i g

*Coses cloted howes complacnis nol recered phod 1o the nguity  Cuniently in the process of retearch and reaponse

DATE RECEIVED AGENT COMPLAINANT'S NAME CASE ¥
B17/85 Miliennium Telecom DUNCAN, SIMONE 081687P
8723/85 Millennium Telecom LYERLY, DAVID 083988P
B/20/85 Millennium Telecom FOSTER. MICHAEL 083683P
10/02/85 Millennium Telecom VIOLA, MICHAEL 0B0o55P
10/17/85 Millennium Telecom NEAL, ROBYN 092347P

. Millennium Telecom CHEW, WALTER 056083P

* Millennium Telecom DESUE. CLARENCE 0B7BO1P
6/26/85 Number is not in our system BROWN, DOUGLAS oT3137pP
9/05/95 Number is not in our system WALLA, KENNETH 084573P
8/25/85 Number is not in our system ISHAM ELLEN 0BG7ETP
5/30/95 Straight Talk DELOACH, DANIEL DE0340P
8/15/95 Straight Talk LAPLACE, MARY o71620P
9126195 Straight Talk BYLES, LUCEAIN 080218P
7124185 Binning Enterpnses, Inc SIMMS, WILLIAM 078118F
7/28/85 Binning Enterprises, Inc TABLER. GWEN 076573P
B/04/95 Binning Enterpnses, Inc SPEECE, ROBERTF 081285P
B/05/95 Binning Enterprises, inc SANTANA TERESA 081156P
0/07/85 Binning Enlerpnsas, Inc FRANCIS, KENNETH 056126P

" Binning Enterpnsas, Inc SHEERER, GARY MRS 084115P
8/08/85 Tropic Tel DINI, GREG 0BES35P
9/14/85 Tropic Tel ALEXANDER LAWRENCE 087569P
8/21/95 Tropic Tel MCNABB, STEVEN 0BB374P
11/27/85 Tropic Tel LOPEZ, JOSE 086739P
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DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS
WALTER D'HAESELEER

Commussioners: .

SUSAN F. CLARK, CHAIRMAN
J. TERRY DEASON

JULIA L JOHNSON DIRECTOR
DIANE K. KIESLING (904) 413-6600
JOE GARCIA
Public Serbice Commission
November 14, 1995
Mr. Joseph R. Harrout CERTIFIED

Heartline Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 671008
Houston, TX 77267-1008

Dear Mr. Harron:

Florida consumers have filed 79 complaints to date with this Commission in regard
to unautnorized switching of their long distance service to Heartline Communications. This
action raises considerable concern. Most of the complaints appear to stem from the use of
sweepstakes posters with letter of authorization (LOA) forms attached 10 enter various types
of sweepstakes such as a Hawaiian vacation or to win a Mustang car.

Enclosed is a copy of such an LOA that was found in a restaurant in Tallahassee.
We have also observed several other locations using the same display and LOAs. As &
certificated long distance company in Florida, you are required to comply with the
Commission’s rules. These rules were included in your certification package at the ume of
initial certification and your company signed an acknowledgment card that the rules were
understood and all future rules would be followed. Please refer 10 Rule 25-4.118(2)(h).
F.A.C. which requires that the text containing the statement that the LOA will result in the
person's long distance service being switched be of at least as large as any other text on the
page. Please explain how the enclosed LOA that we removed from one of your displays
complies with this rule.

Furthermore, please review the same rule, next sentence, that requires that if the
document is not to be used for the sole purpose of requesting a PIC change that the
document, as a whole, must not be misleading or deceptive. By attaching your LOAs 10 a
display that solely advertises a Hawaiian vacation or winning a Mustang, the whole
document becomes misleading and deceptive. The consumer is easily misled into believing
that he is entering a drawing to win something which is not the sole purpose of the LOA
Therefore, I request that you immediately discontinue or modify this practice 1o comply with
the rules.

Please provide a response in writing explaining corrective action taken to comply with

CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER » 250 SHUMARD OAK BLVD » TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-0830
An Alfirmaine Acnion/Equal Opponenity Employer

..l';__




. . A Hff(:m..j £

November 14, 1995
Page 2

the Commission’s rules, the date of when you have discontinued or modified using the
sweepstakes method of obtaining LOAs in compliance with the rules, and a copy of your
revised LOA that you will be using in the future by .Jiovember 29, 1995.

If you have questions, please contact me at 904/413-6582.

Rick Moses

Eng. Supv.

Bureau of Senice Evaluation
¢: N. Pruin, CAF
c: T. Wilhiams, CMU
Record # 1187

-3




OFFICIAL FORM ™

LONG DISTANCE APPLICATION fAGE ——
VRLQUIRED) |
PLEASE PRINT - FILL OUT COMPLETELY Underis

1B 1o 35 |

DATE: i&& over ____,,J
FULL NAME: e
ADDRESS: —_—
CITY: STATE ZIP
HOME PHONE (REQUIRED) (___| __| ) I =1 ]

SIGNATURE (REQUIRED) A
lam ar least 1B yeans of age | further understand that | may cancel at any tme | authonze
Heartline Communications, Inc. (HCI), 10 ac1 as my agent. and 10 conven the long distance
service on my phone listed above from my current camer w0 HCL. 1 understand that tus LOA
changes my carmer, and that | may designate only one camer at a tume for any 1 pumber |
understand that 1 wall be billed through my Jocal telephone company by HCl 1 understand that
my local phone company may assess a charge for my conversion to HCT 1f thus occurs, HCT wall
pay me back if | send a copy of my all o, HCL P.O. 671008 Houston, TX 77267
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DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS
WALTER D'HAESELEER
DIRECTOR

(904) 413-6600

Commissioners

SUSAN F CLARK, CHAIRMAN
1. TERRY DEASON

JULIA L JOHNSON

DIANE K. KIESLING

JOE GARCIA

Public Serbice Commission
December 13, 1995

Mr. Joseph R. Harron
Heartline Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 671008

Houston, TX 77267-1008

Dear Mr. Harrou:

Tt ank you for your response to my previous letter dated November 14, 1995, M
Darnell articulated that Heartline Communications, Inc. (HCI) has discontinued processing
letters of authorization for several independent marketing agents when problems occurred.
However, it appears that HCI simply eliminates its contractual agreements with its agents
after harm has occurred to the Florida end users and does not have a policy in place 1o
prevent these types of complaints from reoccurring with new agents.

In regard to the displays used by Tropic Tel, it is still the Commission staff's position
that the use of a sweepstakes billboard or display with LOAs aunached is overall deceptive
in nature and should not be used for the intent of switching a person's long distance service.
Even if additional Janguage is added to the display, unless the added language is at least as
large as other text on the display, staff believes it is not in compliance with Rule 25.4.118,
F.A.C. Because the LOAs are an integral part of the display we do not believe it should
be considered a separate document for compliance with the rule. Your company is the
certificated company providing the service and is responsible for the content of the display
being used by Tropic Tel. Therefore, continuing to use the existing displays and waiting
until the next printing of the displays for corrective action is not appropriate. This matter
neceds immediate atiention.

Accordingly, please respond in writing by December 27, 1995 with an outlined
procedural policy that HCI intends to implement that will correct the cause of the
complaints of unauthorized switching of long distance service.

CAFPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER » 2540 SHUMARD OAK BLVD » TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-08%0
An Affitmatee Action/Equal Opportunity Employsr

25
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Mr. Joseph Harrott
Page 2

Furthermore, please provide an explanation of corrective action taken to ensure that
the displays used by Tropic Tel are in compliance with the Commission's rules. If you have
questions, please contact me at 904 /413-6582.

Sincerely,

Mt b

Rick Moses

Eng. Supv.

Bureau of Service Evaluation
¢: N. Pruin, CAF
Record #1187a
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VIA FAX: (904) 413-6581 January 5, 1996
AND REGULAR MAIL

Mr. Rick Moses

Eng. Supervisor

Bureau of Service Of Evaluation

State of Florida Public Service Commission
Capital Circle Office Center

2540 Shuma=d Oak Boulevard

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850

RE: Heartline Communications, Inc./Tropic Tel
Dear Mr. Moses:

This is to confirm our conversation of today resclving the
State of Florida Public Service Commission’s concerns regarding
the Heartline Communications, Inc./Tropic Tel Sweepstakes
promotion. As I previously advised you, we are counsel to Tropic
Tel, a marketer of Heartline Communication’s long-distance
services.

You agreed that the following would resolve the State of
Florida’s concerns with this promotion. Tropic Tel agrees to
revise its box promotion to include the statement "Submission
of official entry form can result in change in long distance
service". This statement will be in a type size and font
similar to the existing statement "See rules on side for entry
information" and will be placed in proximity to the drop-in slot.
Tropic Tel will promptly begin working to change the boxes that
are distributed in Florida to include the disclaimer. This
change will appear on all new boxes shipped to Florida and the
company will use its best efforts to change all existing boxes in
Florida within 90 days.

I appreciate your cooperation on this matter. Please let
me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
oy
- [ 2
cc: Tropic Tel

Heartline Communications, Inc.

SOFFICT 1SR WISEATAS Hooals HHEsDALL N 072 o 0 20l y A8seerys
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See Rules On Side For Entry Information
Submission Of Official Form Can Result In Change In Long Distance Svc.
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Account Nuebser wore Sweepslakes

Corpany Conmtact Limi fod Reponte ”

Customer says her PIC was switched to Heartline without her authorization.
says she has asked Heartline several times to provide her with proof of
authorization. Please provide the PSC with proaf of autharization and issue

appropriate credits.
7/1/96 Report and letter to customer with sweepstakes LOA.

7/2/96 Cuztomer called and said her local service had been disconnected. |

called BellSouth and told them that she had advised them that she would withold

payment of Heartline charges until the problem was resolved.dd

7/5 Closed by phone. Left message of credit and sweepstakes form.

7/5 Customer called and said thanks for follow-up and that his signatire was
forged.

L 1”":[] 1|
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A
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Categery

petractyen _L5-134

Closed by NEP Date 07/05

ferply Received 1

CONSUMER REQUEST

FLORIDA PUBLIC
SERVICE
COMMISSION

2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD
TALLAHASSEE. FL. 32399-0850
204-413-6100

Richard Durbin

DUE: _07/05/95
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PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM

WITH REPORT OF ACTION TOx g
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June 27, 1986

Mrs Tim Ellis
4575 Wenhart Rd.
Lake Worth, FL 33463

RE: Florida Public Service Commission

Request No.: 1298591
Phone Number: 407-964-8511

Dear Mrs. Ellis:

Heartline Communications, Inc. (“Heanline™), acknowledges the receipt of the above reference
complaint on June 19, 1996.

Our investigations have discovered that your phone number was received from TropicTel, an
independent agent for Heartline. For your records, we have included 2 copy of the letter of agency
(LOA) on file for this account. Completion of this LOA constitutes a request to change the long
distance provider, through an undsrlying carrier, for the number provided on the application

New customers are solicited by TropicTel using the “Official Form Long Distance Application” form
in an advertising manner which includes varicus posters and solicitation material for iong distance service
and/or entry into a sweepstake. The posters include pads of long distance applications for the consumer
1o complete information including name, address, phone number and signature

The application verified that the individual signing has the authority to make these changes We believe
‘he form clearly identifies the nature of the solicitation We are liable to ensure that the information
srovided on an LOA is complete an¢ in acccrdance with the standards set forth by the Federal
Communications Commission (FCC). This LOA complies with the requirements indicated in the FCC'’s

procedures in the Poli i i 5
Camiars, CC Docket No. 94-129, and Part 64, Subpart K, Section 64.1150 of the Commission’s Rules

and Regulations as amended (1995).

Our records indicate that your long distance service was changed on January £, 1996 In your com plaint,
you allege this switch was unauthorized  The LOA was completed beanng the nane Ralph Ellis, at the
serne address, who represented himself as the authorized party for changes in the long distance provider.
Your long distance service was reinstated with the preferred carrier on Mearch 4, 1996

The following is a summary of the contact and/or correspondence with Heartline prior to receipt of this
complaint:

Contact was made with Heartline’s Custcmer Service Department on March 4, 1996 to adwvise
us of a dispute in the authorization o change the long distance provider The account was
cancelec within our detabase. Our procedures were explained, and a copy of the LOA and

Heartline's procedures were {ixed

ﬂ-'b\_.




i Y R IR & o A &d |
® & hehonnd 4

Credit was issued for service fees from January 1996 in the amount of $5.9€6 The process was
completed and this information was submitted to our billing agent on March 4, 1996 The credit
appeared on the bill from the local telephone company within two (2) billing cycles

Our records indicate the total long distance billing from Heartline was $250.70. Pursuant te your
inclusion of a preferred carrier in the complaint, an exact rate adjustment was calculated in the amount
of $125 14. Additional credit is issued for switching fees assessed by the local telephone company in
the amount of $2.98. Therefore, a total credit of $1.8 12 will appear on the bill from the local telephone

company within two (2) billing cycles

We trust the foregoing satisfactorily answers any questions you may have in this regard  Should you
require any additional information, please contact the undersigned at 800-569-7119

Respectifully submitted,
HEARTLINE COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

etz Imeomn—"

Tricia Marc e
Consumer Complaint Manager

enclosure

ce Florida Public Service Commission

_}l_.




OFFICIAL FORM el
LONG DISTANCE AFF:—]C&TION F &GE (REQUIRED) !
FLEASE PRINT - FILL OUT COMPLETELY | Under 1§ f
18035 _ v~
DATE: ot 5 M 5-_ @&um ——

FULL NAME: /S fsii/ﬁf s/LS :

ADDRESS: £££8” 7 &= [u/ E L o g - ,&S?;QL

CITY: L W STATE 242 2w SZ 44T
HOME PHONE (REQU/RED) (& O | 1Z1& &) ~ |2 s /071
SIGNATURE (REQUIRED) : :

[ am at least 18 yeans of age. | further unders that | may cancel at any tims. | cuthonze
Heanline Communications, Inc. (HCT), to aglas my agent. and to conven the long distance
«ervice on my phone listed above from my current cammier 1o HCL | understand that this LOA
changes my camer, and that | may designaie only one camer at a lime for any | number, |
understand that [ will be billed trough my local telephone company by HCT. [ understand that
my local phone company may assess 3 charge lor my conversionto HCL. If this occurs, HCT will
pay me back If I send a copy of my bill to: HCL P.O. 671008 Houson, TX 77267
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Federal Communications Commission ECC

In the Matter of
Heartline Communications, Inc.

Apparent Liability for Forfeiture

Belore the
FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20554

File No. ENF-95-18

NAL/Acct. No. 516EF0007

T T it gt

NOTICE OF APPARENT LIABILITY FOR FORFEITURE

Adopted: June 20, 1996, Released: June 20, 1996

By the Commuission:

I. INTRODUCTION

) By this Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture ("NAL"), we intiate

enforcement action against Heartline Communications, Inc. (Heartline)." For the reasons
discussed below, we find that Heartline apparently willfully or repeatedly violated Commission
rules and orders’ by changing the primary interexchange carriers ("PICs") designated by the
complainants identified below without their authorization.” Based upon our review of the facts
and circumstances surrounding the violations, we find that Heartline is apparently liable for a
forfeiture in the amount of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).

Heartline, incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas, is a reseller of common CAMEr »crvices and
for the purposes of Commission regulation, is 3 common camier subject to our junsdiction under Tutle 1l
of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended. Heanline's business address 1s: 1001 Fanmn. #300,

Houston, Texas 77002. Joseph R. Hasron is the presiden:.

See 47 C.F.R & 64.1100; Policies and Rules Concemning Long Distance Carmers, 7 FCC Red 1035 ( 1992y

{(PIC Change Order). reconsideration demied. 8 FCC Red 3215 (1991); Investigation of Access and
Divestiture Related Tariffs, 101 FCC 2d 911 (1985) (Aliocation Order). reconsideration dermed, 102 FCC
24 503 {1985) (Reconsideration Order), Investigation of Access and Divestiture Related Tariffs. Phase |,

101 FCC 2d 935 (1985) (Warver Order)

The practice of changing a customer PIC without the customer's authorization |5 commonly referred to

4

as “slamming ”
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II. BACKGROUND

2, In its Allocation Order and subsequent Reconsideration Order and Waiver Order *
the Commission set forth rules and pr-cedures for implementing equal access’ and customer
presubscription® to an interexchange camer ("[XC").” The Commission's original allocation plan
required IXCs to have on file a letter of agency ("LOA") signed by the customer before
submitting PIC-change orders to the local exchange carrier ("LEC") on behalf of the customer.'
After considering claims by certain [XCs that this requirement would stifle competition because
consumers would not be inclined to execute the LOAs even though they agreed to change their
PIC, the Commission later modified the requirement to allow IXCs to initiate PIC changes if they
had "instituted steps to obtain signed LOAs.™ In 1992, the Commission again revised its rules
because it continued to receive complaints about unauthorized PIC changes.'® Specifically, while
the Commission recognized the benefits of permitting a telephone-based industry to rely on
telemarketing to solicit new business, it required [XCs to institute one of the following four
confirmation procedures before submitting PIC-change orders gencrated by telemarketing:
(1) « btain the consumer’s written authorization; (2) obtain the consumer's electronic authonzation
by use of an 800 number; (3) have the consumer's oral authorization verified by an independent
third party; or (4) send an information package, including a prepaid, retunable posteard, withun
three days of the consumer's request for a PIC change, and wait 14 days before submitung the
consumer’s order to the LEC, so that the consumer has sufficient time to return the postcard
denying, cancelling, or confirming the change order." Hence, the Commission's rules and orders

4 See supra note 2.

5 Equal access for interexchange carriers is that which is equal in rype, quality and price to the aceess to local
exchange facilities provided to AT&T and its affilistes. United Siates v. American Tel. & Tel., 552 F. Supp
131, 227 (D.D.C. 1982), aff'd sub nom. Maryland v. United Stares, 460 U.S. 1001 (1983) (Modlfication of
Final Judgment or MFJ). "Equal access allows end users to access facilities of a designated [IXC] by
dialing '1’ only.” Allocarion Order, 101 FCC 2d at 911.

6 Presubscription is the process by which each customer selects one prumary interexchange camer ("PIC7),

from among several available camiers, for the customer's phone line(s). Allocation Order, 101 FCC 2d
911, 928. Thus, when a customer dials "1” only, the customer accesses the primary [XC's services. An

eod user can also use other [XCs by dialing a five-digit access code (10XXX). /d. at 911.

7 WmhﬂJ.hlewumqummﬂd:quﬂmmmmmomm
by September 1986, where technically feasible. Jd.

An LOA is a document, signed by the customer, that states that the customer bas selected a particular camer
as that customer's primary loog distance camier. Allocation Order, 101 FCC 2d a 929.

9 Waiver Order, 101 FCC 2d a1 942.
10 PIC Change Order, T FCC Red a2 1038-3%.

11 See 47 CF.R. § 64.1100, PIC Change Order, 7 FCC Red at 1045

-
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currentlvy require that IXCs either obtain a signed LOA or. in the case of telemarkenng

solicitations, complete one of the four telemarketing verification procedures before submiring
PIC-change requests to LECs on behalf of consumers. .

3 Because of its continued concern over unauthonized PIC changes, the Commission
recently prescribed the general form and content of the LOA used to authorize a change in a
customer's primary long distance carrier.”? Ti. : Commission’s recent rules prohibit the potentially
aeceptive or confusing practice of combining the LOA with promotional materials in the same
document.'” The rules also prescribe the minimum contents of the LOA and require that the
LOA be written in clear and unambiguous language.' The rules prohibit all "negative option”
LOAs" and require that LOAS be completely translated if they employ more than one language "

1II. THE COMPLAINTS

4. This forfeiture action is based on the staff's invesugation of five consumer
complaints involving allegations of slamming by Heartline that were filed with the Commuission
between August 10 and September 21, 1995."" Each of the complainants allege that Heartline
converted their long distance service provider without their authorization through the apparent
use of falsified or forged LOAs. In each case, the LOAs were apparently submitted to Heartline
by one of its several sales and marketing ~gents. We describe each of the complaints and

Heartline's responses to them below.

A. John C. Best

5. In July 1995, Millennium Telecom, an independent agent of Heartline, apparently
sent Heartline an order to switch the PIC of John C. Best, of San Diego, California, from AT&T.
his presubscribed long distance service provider, to Heanline." Hearthine states that the PIC

ta Policies and Rulss Concerning Unauthorized Changes of Consumers’ Long Distance Carmers, 10 FCC Red
9560 (1995) (LOA Order), recontideration pending.

13 See 1d ar 9573-75.

14 See 1d. at 9564-65.

15 See 14 at 9565-66. "Negative option” LOAs require consumers to Lake some action to avoid having therr
long distance telephone service changed.

16 See 1. a1 9581,

iz Since January 1. 1993, the Commission has received numerous consumer complaints about Heanline's
alleged slamming practices. Many of these complaints are under active investigation by the staff. Our
action here is based solely on the five complants specifically mentioned nerein

18 Letter from Kristal Rasch, Consumer Complaints Analyst for Heartline, 1o Kathie A. Kneff. Chaef,
Consumer Protection Branch (Dec. 26, 1995) (Best Response)  Although Heartline states that o received
Hest's telephone number and LOA from Millennium Telecom, the LOA utsell has no reference [0

Millennium Telecom.  Instead, it authorizes Tropic Tel to act as the signor’s agent to switch the long

=
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change was submitted to Pacific Bell on July 11, 1995, apparently on the basis of Millennium
Telecom's representation that it had obtained the necessary authorization.” Upon learning of the
switch, Best contacted Heartline by telephone on.August 7, 1995 and denied authorizing any
change to his PIC. In response, Heartline ient to Best a copy of the LOA upon wiich it had
relied to request the PIC change.® Best examined the signature on the LOA, which was dated
May 7, 1995, and determined that it was a forgery. He then sent a copy of his driver’s license
to Heartline as evidence that the signatures on the LOA and the dnver's license did not match.
On August 28, 1995, Best filed his complaint with the Commission, and included a copy of the
allegedly forged LOA and a copy of his driver's license showing his signature as evidence to
support his allegations.”’ Best also noted in his complaint that his street address is misspelled on
the LOA. The Common Carrier Bureau's Consumer Protection Branch® served the complaint
on Heartline and directed it to satisfy Best's complaint or explain why it was unable to do so ™

B. Mohammad Farooq

6. In July 1995, Millennium Telefonica, also an independent agent of Heartline,*
apparently sent Heartline an order to switch the PIC of Mohammad Farooq, of Glendale,
California, from AT&T, his presubscribed long distance service provider, to Heartline ™
Heartline states that it submitted the PIC changes to Pacific Bell, apparently on the basis of
Millennium Telefonica's representation that it had obtained the necessary authorization, and
Farooq was switched from his preferred camer to Heartline on July 17, 1995. Upon learning of
the switch, Farooq contacted Heartline on August 18, 1995 and denied authorizing any change
to his PIC. In response, Heartline sent to Farooq a copy of the LOA upon which Heartline had

distance provider for that number, and agrees that Tropic Tel may designate Heartline as the new preferred
provider.

19 Jd. Pacific Bell's records indicate that it recrived the order to switch from Allnet, and that USBI was the

billing agent for Allnet. Leter from E. M. Saiz, Manager—Informal Appeals, Pacific Bell, to Suzanse
Perrin, FCC (Dec. 29, 1995). On the telephone bill provided by Best, USBI sppears to be billing for
Heartline. Nowhere in Heartline's response to the Notice of [nformal Complaint is there an explanation of
the relationship berween Heartline and Allnet or USBL

20 Best Response.
_ 21 Ses Atachment A,
z Formerly known as the Informal Complaints and Public Inquines Branch.
23 Notice of Informal Complaint, File No. 1C-95-26130 (Dec. 1, 1995).

Although Millennium Telefonica and Millennium Telecom have similar names, nothing in the record
indicates that they are the same company.

24

25 Letter from Kristal Rasch, Consumer Complaints Analyst for Heartline, to Kathie A. Kneff, Chiel
Consumer Protection Branch (Dec. 13, 1995)

4
1-



. . S57559

Federal Communications Commission FCC 46-2-2

relied 10 request the PIC change. Farooq compared the signature on the LOA, which was dated
May 7, 1995, with his signature on his California driver’s license, and determined that the
signature on the purported LOA was a forgery. On August 28, 1995, Faroog filed his complaint
with the Commission, and included a copy of the allegedly forged LOA, a copy of his driver -
license, and copies of his long distance phone bills from both AT&T and Heartline as evidence
to support his allegations.” The Consumer Protection Branch served the complaint on Heartline
and directed it to satisfy Farooq's complaint or explain why it was unable to do so.™

C. Jovce H. Park

7. In or around July 1995, Tropic Tel, another independent agent of Hearthne.
apparently sent Heartline an order to switch the PIC of Jovce H. Park. of Northndge, California.
from AT&T, her presubscribed long distance service provider, to Heartline, Heartline states that
it submitted the PIC-change order on the basis of a representation from Tropic Tel that it had
obtained the necessary authorization to switch Park, and she was swiiched from her preferred
carrier on August 1, 19957 Upon learning of the switch, Park contacted Heartline on August
8. 1995 . 1d denied authorizing any change to her PIC. In response, Heartline sent to Park a cops
of the LOA upon which it had relied to request the PIC change.” Park eiamined the signature
on the LOA, which was dated July 13, 1995, and determined that the signature on the purported
LOA was a forgery. Park filed her complaint, dated August 8, 1995, wath the Comnussion, and
included a copy of the allegedly forged LOA, a copy of her California driver's license, and copies
of her long distance phone bills as evidence to support her allegations.® The Consumer
Protection Branch served the complaint on Heartline and directed it to satisfy Park’s complaint

or explain why it was unable to do so.”

D. Natwle L. Finley

g In or around June 1995, Tropic Tel apparently sent Heartline an orger to swatch
the PIC of Natalie L. Finley, of La Mesa, California, from Sprint, Finiey's presubscnbed long
distance service provider, to Heartline. Heartline submitted the PIC change to Pacific Bell, which

See Attachment B. Not the least of Faroogq's concemns was, for example. the fact that although AT&T onl»
charged him $6.02 for a seven-munute call to Pakistan, Heartline charged hum $25.26 for virtualiy the same

call, a 319% increase in rates
27 Notice of Informal Complaint, File No 1C-95-26185 (Sep 6, 1993)

Lener from Knstal Rasch, Consumer Complaints Analyst for Hearthine, to Kathie A Kneff Chiel
Consumer Protection Branch (Sep 28, 1995) (Park Response)

9 fd

i See Anachment C

| wotice of Informal Complaint. File No 1€-95-23924 (Sep 28, 1995)

-5~
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switched Finley to Heartline on July 6, 1995. Finley contacted Heartline on August 17, 1995 and
denied authorizing any change in her PIC. In response, Heartline sent to Finley a copy of the
LOA upon which Heartline relied to make the switch. The copy of the LOA provided by
Heartline was dated May 8, no year. and bor~ the name and purported signature of Torlorf Finley,
whom Heartline believes to be Finley's husband. Upon comparing the signature on the LOA
with Torlorf Finley's Alabama driver's license and Armed Forces ID card, Finley determined thar
the signature on the LOA was an apparent forgery. On September 18, 1995, Finley mailed her
complaint to the Commission, and included a copy of the allegedly forged LOA and copies of
Torlorf Finley's driver's license and military ID card as evidence to support her allegations *
The Consumer Protection Branch served the complaint on Heartline and directed it to sausfy
Finley's complaint or explain why .it was unable to do so.”

E. Colleen Carranza

9. In or around June 1995, Tropic Tel apparently sent Heartline another PIC-change
order, this time to switch the PIC of Colleen Carranza, of San Diego, California, from her
presubscribed long distance service provider to Heartline.” Heartline submitted the PIC change
to Pacific Bell, which switched Carranza to Heartline on June 27, 1995. Carranza contacted
Heartline on June 29, 1995 and denied authorizing any change in her PIC. In response, Heartline
sent to Carranza a copy of the LOA, dated May 15, 1995, upon which Heartline relied to make
the switch. Carranza states in her complaint to the Commission, dated August 2, 1995, that the
signature on the LOA is not hers. The Consumer Protection Branch served the complaint on
Heartline and directed it to satisfy Carranza’s complaint or explain why it is unable to do so0. "

IV. HEARTLINE'S RESPONSES
10. In each case, Heartline responded to the Commission's Notice of Informal

Complaint (NOIC) with what appears to be a form letier that had case-specific information
inserted at various points.* In each of these letters, Heartline states that it used a marketing agent

32 See Attachment D. Finley also forwarded to the Commission copies of a letier sent to her by Heartline and
the Commission’s public notice regarding slamming. We are treating these matenals as an informal
complaint.

33 Motice of Informal Complaint, File No 1C-95-27506 (Sep. 21, 1995).
34 In her complaint, Carranza does not state which presubscribed camrier she previously used
35 Motice of Informal Complaint, File No. 1C-95-23870 (May 10, 1993)

The inserted information included names of the complunants, relevant dates, including the date of the
allegedly unauthorized conversion, names of the marketing agents involved; and summaries of contacts o
correspondence between Heartline and the complainants prior to service by the Commussion of the wnformal
complaint. See supra notes 18, 25, 29, 34, and 35

6
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1o obtain the LOAs that it relied upon 1o switch the complainants’ long distance service
Heartline explains in each case thai the marketing agents solicited new customers by using an
LOA that was combined with a sweepstakes entry form that asked for the entrant’s name
address, telephone number, and signature.”’ Further, Heartline uniformly states that it has
refunded usage charges billed to the complainants in excess of the rates charged by cach
complainant’s preferred long distance carrier, that the LEC has refunded charges for switching
long distance carrirers, and that the complainants, except Farooq, have been switched back to
their carriers of choice. Heartline, however, neither denies that the signatures do not match thos-
provided by the complainants nor disputes the complainants® allegations that the signatures on

the LOAs are forgeries.

V. DISCUSSION

11.  We have evaluated the information obtained as a result of the staff’s investigation
and based on the foregoing, we conclude that Heartline has apparently willfully or repeatedly
violated the Commission's rules and orders regarding PIC-change requirements. We find
Heartline  actions particularly egregious. It appears that Heartline submitted PIC-change requests
to various LECs based on apparently forged or falsified LOAs from a vanety of its sales agents
that resulted in the unauthorized conversion of these five complainants® long distance telephone
service from the complainants’ preferred long distance carier to Heartline. The statements and
information provided by the complainants leave virtually no doubt that the LOAs were not
executed by the complainants and that Heartline lacked the requisite authorization to request 2
PIC change to their long distance service. In addition to the apparent forged signatures, we note
that three of the LOAs contain other discrepancies. Best's street address is misspelled and
Carranza's address is completely incorrect. Moreover, Farooq's name 1s misspelled and the
signature on the LOA is his full name, while his signature on his letter and his California drivers
license is a stylized version of his last name only.

12.  Heartline has provided no evidence or information to counter the complainants’
claims that the LOAs were forged or their claims that they did not otherwise authonze the PIC
changes. There is little similarity berween the signatures provided by the complainants and thewr
purported signatures on the LOAs. In any event, Heartline has not contested any of the claims
that the signatures on the LOAs do not match those provided by the complanants. Under these
circumstances, we conclude that Heartline’s apparent actions were in willful or repeated violation

Heartline states that these LOA forms complied with the Commission’s rules tha: were 1n effect at the ume

the forms were in use, Heartline further states that it no longer accepts such LOA forms in light of the fact
that the Comemission’s rules goveming LOA forms have since changed Ser supra para. 3 and notes 18,

25,29 34, and 33

(]
-1

Heanline states without elabaration that 1t did not have enough information to switch Farooq back 1o his
preferred carrier and that he would have to contact the carmer directly  See supra note 25

7
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of the Commission’s PIC-change rules and orders and that a substantial forfeiture penalrv 1
appropnate.

13.  We also note that with regard to PIC changes, the actions of Heartline's marketing
agents do not relieve Heartline of its independent obligation to ensure compliance with our rules
nor do they otherwise mitigate Heart!' 1¢'s role in the apparent violations. The Communications
Act deems the acts or omissions of an agent or other person acting for a common carrier to be
the acts or omissions of the carrier itself.” Hence, the Act expressly prohibits a carrier from
evading the requirements of the Act or the Commission's rules or orders by hiring someone else
to engage in conduct that contravenes these requirements.

14.  As a general matter, the unauthorized conversion of a customer’s presubscribed
long distance carrier continues to be a wide-spread problem in the industry.* We are particularly
troubled by what appears to be a common practice by some IXCs of relying on unverified LOAs,
which tum out to be falsified or forged, to effect changes in consumers’ long distance service.
The pervasiveness of the problem suggests that our current administration of the law has not
produced sufficient deterrence to noncompliance and the carriers have litle incentive to curtail
practices that lead to consumer complaints. Furthermore, as a practical matter, the carmers’
responses to alleged unauthorized conversion complaints rarely provide a detailed explanation or
justifications of the camiers’ actions. Therefore, 10 draw the industry’s attention to the
seriousness of the problem and to provide incentives to comply with the Commission’s rules and
orders, we intend to scrutinize consumer complaints and to take prompt enforcement action,
including the imposition of substantial mouetary fines, when the facts indicate that a carrier has
failed to take the necessary steps to ensure that LOAs are valid and duly authonized. If cammiers
intend to rely on a LOA to request a PIC change, they will be responsible for ensuring its
validity.

15. Section 503(b)}(2}B) of the Communications Act authorizes the Commission to
assess a forfeiture of up 1o ons hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for each violation or each
day of a continuing violation up to a statutory maximum of one million dollars ($1,000,000) for
a single act or failure to act*' In exercising such authority, the Commission is required to take
into account "the nature, circumstances, extent, and gnm'ty of the violation and, with respect to
the violator, the degree of cu]publhty. any history of prior offenses, ability to pay, and such other

matters as justice may require.” For purposes of determining an appropriate forfeiture penalty
“in this case, we regard the conversion of each of the five complainants’ telepk - ne line as a single,

39 47USC. § 217

From September 1994 (o September 1995, of the 32,598 informal complaints filed, 10,544 werre for alleged
unauthorized conversions of the customer's presubscribed long distance camer.

T _______J

40

41 47 US.C. § S03(bX2XB).

42 47 US.C. § 503(bX2XD).
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separate violation. After weighing the circumstances surrounding each violation, we find that
Heartline is apparently liable for a forfeiture of forty thousand dollars ($40,000) for the
unauthorized conversion of each of the five complainams’ long distance service, resulung n a
total forfeiture of two hundred thousand dollars ($§200,000). Heartline will have an cpportunity
to submit evidence and arguments in response 1o this NAL to show that no forfeirure should be
imposed or that some lesser amount should be assessed.’ In this regard, we note that the
Commission has previously held that a licensee’s gross revenues are the best indicator of ats
ability to pay a forfeiture and that use of gross revenues to determine a party's ability to pay s
reasonable, appropriate, and a useful yardstick in helping analyze a company's financial condition
financial condition for forfeiture purposes.® We will give full consideration to any financial
information provided by Heartline before assessing 2 final forfeiture amount.

VI. CONCLUSIONS AND ORDERING CLAUSES

16. We have carefully reviewed the information obtained through our investigation and
conclude that during the period of June, July, and August, 1995, Heartline apparently converted
or caused a local exchange carrier to convert the five complainants’ telephone lines without their
authorization. We further conclude that Heartline thereby apparently willfully or repeatedly
violated Commission rules governing primary interexchange carrier conversions, and that its
conduct warrants a forfeiture in the amount of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000)

17. Accordingly. IT 1S ORDERED, pursuant to Section 503(b) of Communications
Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. § 503(b), and Section 1.80 of the Commuission’s rules. 47
C.F.R § 1.80, that Heartline Communications, Inc., IS HEREBY NOTIFIED of an Apparent
Liability for Forfeiture in the amount of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) for its willful
or repeated violation of the Commission’s PIC-change rules and orders, 47 C.F.R. § 64.1100; PIC
Change Order, 7 FCC Red 1038 (1992): Allocation Order, 101 FCC 2d 911 (1985); Waiver

Order, 101 FCC 2d 935 (1985).

18 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED. pursuant to Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules,
47 C.F.R. § 1.80, that within thirty days of the release of this NAL, Heartline SHALL PAY the

43 See 47 US.C § S03(bX4XC), 47 CFR § 1.80(M)X3).

PIB Communications of Virgima, 7 FCC Red 2088, 2089 (1992) (finding that forfeitures of $5,000 and
£3.000 assessed against two jointly owned and operated paging COMpanics were nof excessive because the

total forfeiture amount ($8,000) represented approxumately 2.02 percent of the companies’ combined gross
revenues of $395.469). see also David L. Hollingsworth dba Worland Services, 7 FCC Red 6640 (Com
Car Bur 1992)(56,000 forfeiture representing approximately 1.21 percent of licensee’s 1991 gross revenues
and approximately 1.34 percent of projected 1992 gross revenues not found to be excessive), Afion
Communications Corp. 7 FCC Red 6741 (Com. Car. Bur. 1992) (56,000 forfeiture representing
zpproximately 3.91 percent of 1990 gross revenues and 2.75 percent of projected 1992 gross revenues not

found to be excessive)

¥
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full amount of the proposed forfeiture*’ OR SHALL FILE a response showing why the proposed
forfeiture should not be imposed or should be reduced.

19.  IT IS FURTHER ORDEF ED that a copy of this Notice of Apparent Liabilit,

SHALL BE SENT by certified mail to Joseph R. Harrott, Heartline Communications, Inc ., P O
Box 53029, Houston, Texas 77052-3029.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

William F. Caton
Acting Secretary

45 The forfeiture amount must be paid by check or money order drawn to the order of the Federal
Communications Commission. Reference should be made on Heartline's check or money order to
“NAL'Acct. No. SI6EF0007. Such remirtances must be mailed to Forfeiture Collection Section, Finance
Branch. Federal Communications Commission, P.O, Box 73482, Chicago. Illinois 60673-7482.
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Attachment A
John C. Best
File No. !C-95-26130
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OFFICIAL ENTRY FORM
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<+ FILL. OUT .COMPLETELY ° 191038 L7 |
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o

IIUMFPIIUNF(REQUHLED{é‘ | !z] [2!2 |Z| -— E ['? b

SIGNATURF, mtqumm x
| understand Uhat | am under no obligdtion Lo continue this agreemnent, and miay cancel al
any time | s over 18 yrs old & 1 am the person responsible for my plionc histed above |
hereby authiorize TropicTel to act asmy agent for long distance conversion on my phone lisied
above | may designale only onc camer at a lime, and | agree tiai TropweTel, aai's sole
diserclion, may designatc Heanline Comnmunucations or anothier as my prunary Long Distance
Provider 1 undersiend that | will be billed through my local iclephene company by Heanline
Commumications - Should my local phone company asscss @ charge for my conversion,
TropicTel will pay me back if | send a copy to. P.O. box 240729, Honalulu, 1l $0B24

"""CALIF ORN I a2
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Attachment B-1
Mohammad Farooq
File No. IC-95-26185

SU TELEFONICA

SERVING HISPANIC FAMILIES THROUGHOUT TUE WORLD
Millenuum Telefonica Corporation

3413 Wilsture Bivd | Sune 2200, Los Angeles CA 90010
* Telephone (113) 718-1200
Heanline Commumications Customer Senace (300) 4914091

: Letter of Agency |

D YES, | WANT TO START SAVING MONEY WITH SU TELEFONICA.

Please contact my _local telephone company to armange convernion of my long distince service My
signarure below denipnates Millenruum Teleforuca Corporation 10 act as my ageni for long digtance
service for the numbers below | understand tha Millenmium Telefonica Corporation may dengnage
Heanline Communication Incorporaied as my long dimance provider | undersiand that | may have only
one long distance provider, and that my current long disance company wall be canceled | undermand
that | wall be billed by niy local ielephone company and | agree 1o pay for the services upon receipt
invosce | further understand that this change in ezmisr only applict 1o the long Jintance portion of my
sermace and will nat change mv local peosader | want the Tollowing tclephone nunibers 10 be converted b
Millenam Telefomea Corpevanon | am legally authonzed 10 wake this change 3nd | understand tu |
Usere may be a snatl swaiching fee charged by my bocal islephone company 2 make thy changs

To receive thete 1avinga. | desigaste Millennium Telefonica as my agemt for Loag Distapce
Service far the tenn of ONE (1) YEAR. | undersiand that | may only have one long distance provader
and | designate Millennium 10 be my scting agent for the period of one yvear, eliective on this date | aise
understand (hat | may continue 10 use Millennium Telefonica service even afller my term has expired

Primary llome Telephone Number Sig] 9 é{-(? - l( ??"2- 3
Addivenal llome Telephane Nuauber ()

Fell Naoie MM %‘D’D} ;
adtrens 1020 ylinckeFdse . ' ‘109 .
Ciry/State/Zip M C‘{'}' ‘} |1 -

| undersand thalby signung this Lener of Agency. Millennium Telefonica Corporation wall act as my
agent for long distance service. and may designze Heanline Commumications Incorporated as my long
dimance camer | also understand (hat | wall have 3 monthly fee of 32 92 as payment for the above
discount plan, which provides me with thummy (30} second call rounding afler the 1wl one (1) munute

period | heretry cerfy that Jlluu- the authoniy 1o sign thus Lewer of Agency
Avthon zed Slﬁilult4MLW %@_ Date '(;/O/‘?E
: /
L
/-".-- == 0N — ) _‘._' —
Represemane_(EZ AR MMENA  oe_[OZ
Offwee Venfiedn _Vent
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Attachment B-2

Mohammad Farooq
File No. 1C-95-26185
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Attachment C
Joyce H. Park
File No, 1C-95-23924
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Attachment D
Natalie F. Finley
File No. 1C-85-27506

OFFICIAL ENTRY FORM

o N mnc msmncz AFFI.JCA'I‘ION —
R ST o s AGE (reguasm
- m,,._,I'LEASE PRINT' Under 18
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. SIGNATURE 7: (REQUIRED T

py s/

- -1 understand thai | am under no obligatioli to con
-~ any timex]am over.18 yrs old & [ amn Lhe person

ﬂue lIz!sayccu |. and may cancel at

nsible for ny plione lisizd atove |

4+ hzreby authonze TropicTel to actas my agent fur long distance conversion on my phone hsied
# sbove. -1 may - designate only one carmer at & ume, and [ agree that TropicTel, at it's sole
. dscreuon, may designate Hearthine Communications or another asmy prunary Long Dhstance

. Provider [understand that | will be billed through my
Communicatioris. - Should my locai phone company

local iclephone company by Heartline
asscss a charge for my conversion,

TropicTel will pay me back il [ send a copy to: P.O box 240729, Honolulu, HI 96814
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